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Indeoendent Auditor's Reoort 
To the Board of Directors Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners Depat-tnaent of Health and Hospitals State of Louisiana 

MEMBERS ~ of Ce~t f~ct Public Accoun~nt= Sociely or Lev~a~ Cer tif~d Pu~ic Ac=euemnts 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners, a component unit of the State of Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United State of America and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supposing the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners as of December 31, 2003 and its changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May I3, 2004 on our consideration of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 



IT 
The accompanying management's discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents is not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the State of Louisiana Board of Medical Examiners' basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, such as the board members per diem and the Division of Administration Reporting packet, as listed in the table of contents are presented for purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements oft he Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

IIENZ & MACALUSO, LLC May i3, 2004 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
The management's discussion and analysis of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' financial performance presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2003. This document focuses on the current year's activities, resulting changes, mad currently known facts in comparison with prior year's information. Please read this document in conjunction with the information contained in the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiner's financial statements, which begin on page 8. 
The Louisiana State Board of Medica! Examiners continues to have no debt except for compensated absences for employees in the amount of $129,326. The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2003 by $ 2,982,942, which represents a 26.68% decrease from last fiscal year. ~r The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' operating revenue increased by $ 231,811 from the previous year - a 6.46% increase. 4r Interest income on certificates of deposit decreased $ 32,179 from the previous year - a 54.42% decrease. * Capital acquisitions in the amount of $138,242 were made during 2003 including $ 28,441 of equipment and $109,801 for improvements to our building. Overview of the basic financial statemen 
's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Gov 



 

These financial statemcnts consist of three sections - Management's Discussion and Analy.'sis (this section), the basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial stateme~:ts), and required sttpplementary information. Basic Financial Statements 
The basic financial statements present information for the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners as a whole, in a format desigmed to make the statements easier for the reader to understand. The statements in this section include the Statement of Net Assets. the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets; and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Net Assets (pages 8-9) presents the current and long-term portions of assets and liabilities separately. The difference be~'ecn total assets and total liabilities is net assets and may provide a uscful indicator of whether the financial position of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Exanliners is improving or deteriorating. 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chan~es in Fund Net Assets presents infomlation showing how the Louisiana State Board of Medical Exam (page 1 O) iners" assets changed as a result of current year operations. Regardless of when cash is affected, all changes in net assets are reported when the underlying transactions occur As a result, there are transactions included that will not affect cash until fiscal periods The Cash Flow Statement (pages 11-12) presents information showing how the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners" cash changed as a result of current year operations. The cash flow statement is prepared using the direct method and includes the reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided ~used) by operating activities (indirect method) as required by GASB 34. 



Financial Analysis of the Entity 
Entity: The following presents condensed financial information on the operations of the (in thousands) 
Current and other assets $ Capital assets Total assets Other liabilities Long-term debt outstanding (compensated absences) Total liabilities Net assets Invested in capital assets, net of debt Restricted Unrestricted Total net assets $ 
Operating Revenues Operating Expenses 

Total 2003 
3,322 1.478 4,800 1,688 129 1,817 
1,478 870 635 2,983 
3,821 

2002 
4,333 1,440 5.773 1,587 118 1,705 
1,440 952 1.676 $ 4,068 

$ 3,589 
Operating income (loss) (1,113) (1,205) Net-operating revenues (expenses) Income (loss) before transfers 

Transfers in Transfers out 
Net increase (decrease) in net assets 

28 60 

Restricted net assets represent those assets that are not available for spending as a result of legislative requirements. Conversely, unrestricted net assets are those that do not have any limitations on what these amounts may be used for. Total net assets of Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners decreased by $1,085,468 or 26.68%, from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. 



 

Although revenue increased during 2003, expenditures increased by $139,889 from 2002. Personnel services, travel, professional services and supplies increased during 2003 while contract services and operating services decreased over 2003. Caoital Assets and Long Term Debt Administration 
As of December 31, 2003, the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners had $1,477,620 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including buildings, building improvements, equipment and an automobile. During the current year, the organization recorded $138,242 of capital acquisitions, including $ 28,441 for equipment and $109,801 for building improvements. 
The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners did not have any bonds or notes outstanding at December 31, 2003. The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners has claims and judgments of $-0- outstanding at year-end compared with $-0- last year. Other Obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave in the amount of $129,326. Variations between Original and Final Budeets There were no amendments made to the original budget. Revenues were approximately $11,248 over budget and expenditures were approximately$ 340,804 over budget due mainly to increases over budgeted amounts in contractual and professional services and personnel. Economic Factors and Next Year's Budeets and Rates The Board staff continues to grow to meet licensure demands. These expenses, the ever increasing costs to investigate and prosecute violations of the practice Acts, the increasing responsibilities of the Board to serve on committees to address joint issues of concern such as the limited prescribing authority of advanced practice registered nurses, new laws requiring the Board to provide information services such as-alternative treatments on breast cancer and authorizing the Board to require continuing education for licensure as well as problems concerning managed health care in Louisianawill continue to add to the Board's expenses making it most important that the Board attain a financial position which it can meet its operational costs and establish a surplus fund for a new project to upgrade the Board's informational systems, growth and training of personnel, upgrading building security and maintenance and unforeseen contingencies. In addition, as with prior years, the major financial issues faced by the Board have involved various practice acts administered by the Board, to include judicial appeals of Board decisions. 



 

The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' appointed officials considered the following factors and indicators when setting next year's budget, rates, and fees. These factors and indicators include: 
~ Expected revenues ~ Staffing and salaries ~ Outside services The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners expects that next year's results will improve based in the following: ~ Implementation of Legislature approved increases in license and renewal fees. 
Contactine the Board's Financial Manaeemen This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' finances and to show the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions regarding this report or need additional financial information, contact: 

John Bobear, M.D. www.lsbme.org Executive Director P.O. Box 30250 New Orleans, LA 30250 



ASSETS 

LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
CURRENT ASSETS Cash and cash equivalents Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) Restricted assets - current Cash and cash equivalents Receivables (net of allowance) Accrued interest Prepaid items Accrued interest Total Current Assets 
NONCURRENT ASSETS Property and equipment (net of depreciation) Other assets 
Total Noncurrent Assets 
To~lAss~s 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Financial Statement, 

$ 2,024,244 
207,186 
990,143 54,245 340 3,400 1,874 
3,281,432 
1,477,620 41,000 
1,518,620 



LIABILITIES 
LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS DECEMBER 31, 2003 

CURRENT LIABILTIES Accounts payable and accruals Deferred revenues 
Total Current Liabilities 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES Compensated absences payable Total Noncurrent Liabilities Total Liabilities 
NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets, Net of related debt Restricted for: Capital projects Debt service Other purposes Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

$ 268,442 1,419,342 
1,687,784 
129.326 
1,817,110 
1,477,620 
869~849 
635.473 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Financial Statement 



 
LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 

OPERATING REVENUES Licenses, permits and fees Other Total Operating Revenues 
OPERATING EXPENSES Personnel Services Contractual services Travel Operating services Supplies Professional services Depreciation Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) Interest revenue 
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) Decrease in Net Assets 

Total Net Assets - beginning 
Total Net Assets - ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Financial Statement. 

$ 3,703,282 117,948 

2,138,637 772,710 64,581 504,465 55,928 1,298,213 99,408 
4,933,942 (1,112,712) 
27,244 
27,244 (1,085,468) 4.068.410 $ 2,982,942 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Cash received from customers Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services Cash payments to employees for services Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Operating transfers in - from other funds Operating transfers out - to other funds Net cash provided (used) by non-capital f'maneing activities 

3,784,413 (2,522,942) (2,181,248) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Acquisition/construction of capita/assets ( 138,242) Net cash provided (used) by capital and Related financing activities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Interest earned on investments 
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

(Continued) The accompanying notes are an integral part of this Financial Statement 

26,285 
(1,031,734) 4.046.121 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net Cash provided (used) by operating activities: Operating income (loss) Depreciation Compensated absences Provision for uncollectable accounts Changes in assets and liabilities: (Increase) in accounts receivable Decrease in prepayments Decrease in other current assets Increase in accounts payable and accruals Increase in deferred revenues 
Total adjustments Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Schedule of noncash investIng, capital, and financing activities: Borrowing under capital lease Contribution of fixed assets Purchase of equipment on account 
Total noncash investing, capital, and financing activities 

99,408 11,489 25,508 (49,551) 
5,348 87,999 12.734 

(1,112,712) 

192,935 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners (the Board) is a component unit of the State of Louisiana created within the Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals, as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 37:1261-1292. The board is charged with the responsibility of administering practice acts providing for the licensure of Doctors of Medicine, Doctors of Osteopathy, Doctors of Podiatry, Physician Assistants, Aeupuncmrists, Acupuncturists Assistants, Occupational Therapists, Occupational Therapy Assistants, Respiratory Therapists, Respiratory Therapist Technicians, Midwives, Clinical Exercise physiologists, Athletic Trainers, Radiological Technologists, Emergency Medical Technicians (Intermediate and Paramedic) and Clinical Laboratory Personnel. Operations of the Board are fimded entirely through self-generated revenues. As to all professions over which it has jurisdiction, the Board's principal functions are essentially the same: (a) Licensing/Certification. The Board examines applicants for licensure or certification to validate minimum competence for practice by verifying that they possess the educational and other credentials prescribed by statute and Board rules, investigation of the applicant's licensure status and history in other jurisdictions, and by examination. Licenses/certifications are generally renewed annually (some biannually) pursuant to re-verification of certain requirements and conditions. Renewals for some categories are on a calendar year basis, but the majority are based on a birth month schedule. (b) Regulations. Pursuant to its rulemaking authority under the practices acts it administers, and in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, the Board promulgates both procedural rules implementing its licensing/certification authority and substantive rules regulating practice. (c) Enforcement. The Board investigates consumer, patient and licensee complaints and alleged or indicated violations of the several practices acts and, upon a finding of probable cause initiates and conducts administrative disciplinary proceedings to adjudicate whether legal cause exists for the suspension, revocation or imposition of probationary terms and/or conditions on any license or certification. The Board's disciplinary authority includes limited authority to impose monetary fines and obtain reimbursement of costs and attorneys fees incurred by the Board in the investigation and prosecution of licensees. The Board also possesses and employs authority to take action against unauthorized practitioners by means of civil injunctive proceedings. (d) Advisory Rulings. The Board serves and informational and advisory role to the public, its constituent licensees and State government by providing declaratory rulings, advisory opinions and Statements of Position on various medical/legal issues within its jurisdiction. (e) Other Activities. The Board participates in a Physicians health Program, jointly organized and conducted with the Louisiana State Medical Society, to identify physically or mentally impaired (or potentially impaired) physicians toward securing timely treatment and rehabilitation for the protection of the public. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 The Board is composed of seven members. Until January 1, 2000 the seven members were appointed by the governor from lists of names submitted by the Louisiana State Medical Society and the Louisiana Medical Association. Effective January 1, 2000 the board will consist of seven voting members appointed by the governor and subject to Senate confirmation as follows: a. Four members from lists of names submitted by the Louisiana State Medical Society. One of the members appointed shall practice in a parish or municipality with a population of less than twenty thousand. b. Two members from lists submitted by the Louisiana Medical Association. 
c. One member from a list submitted by the Louisiana Academy of Family Practice Physicians. All voting members of the board shall be graduate physicians or surgeons and practitioners. Four of the members appointed for terms beginning January 1, 2000, shall be appointed the initial terms of four years and three of the members shall be appointed to initial terms of two years. NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting principles and financial reporting standards. The board applies all GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1999, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. These financial statements were prepared in accordance witti GASB Statement 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. In addition, these financial statements include the implementation of GASB Statement Number 34, Basic Financial Statements- and Management 's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. This new standard was implemented by the Board in 2001 and provides for significant changes in terminology, recognition of contributions in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, inclusion of a management discussion and analysis as supplementary information and other changes. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
GASB Codification Section 2100 established criteria for determining governmental reporting entity and has defined the governmental reporting entity for the board to be the State of Louisiana because the state exercises oversight responsibility in that the governor appoints the board members and public service is rendered within the state's boundaries. The accompanying statements present only transactions of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners, and therefore, are a part of the fund and account group structure of the State of Louisiana. Annually, the State of Louisiana issues basic financial statements, which include the activity contained in the accompanying financial statements. 
All activities of the board are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary fimds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the cost of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
In April of 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the Governmental Accounting Standards Board to promulgate generally accepted accounting principles and reporting standards with respect to activities and transactions of state and local governmental entities. The GASB has issued a Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). This Codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with such principles. The accompanying financial statements of Louisiana State Board Of Medical Examiners present information only as to the transactions of the programs of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners as authorized by Louisiana statutes and administrative regulations. Basis of Accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized and reported in the financial statements. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to the Board is determined by its measurement focus. The transactions of the Board are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with operations are included in the Statement of Net Assets. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 The accounts of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners are maintained in accordance with applicable statutory provisions and the regulations of the Division of Administration - Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy as follows: 
Revenues are recognized using the full accrual basis of accounting; therefore, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable. Any revenues and expenses recorded between funds ("internal fund" activity) have been eliminated in these financial statements. Operating revenues consist of all revenues except investment income. 
Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis; therefore, expenses, including salaries, are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. Operating expenses consist of all expenses except investment expenses. 
Budgets are prepared and adopted by the Board annually. The budget for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003 was adopted at the Board meeting of December 10 2002. The Board adopts a budget annually for the various components. The Board is a state licensing agency subject to the Licensing Agency Budget Act established by Louisiana Revised Statutes 39:1331-1342 in accordance with R.S. 36:803. All funds budgeted are immediately available, as the Board's operations are financed with self-generated revenue. Therefore, the budget is known as a nonappropriated budget. The Board normally does not use encumbrance accounting, so the budget was not integrated in the accounting records. In addition, the budget was employed by the Board as a management control device, by comparing budgeted expenditures with actual expenditures. The budget is prepared on the GAAP basis, using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The Board monitors the budget and makes changes when deemed appropriate 
The Board has complied with the budgetary requirements of LSA-RS 39:43 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Cash includes petty cash, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit. Under state law, the Board may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other State in the Union, or the laws of the United States. Furthermore, the Board may invest in certificates of deposit of state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. Under state law, the Board may invest in United States Treasury obligations, United States government agency obligations, and direct security repurchase agreements or in eligible mutual funds that invest in these securities. All certificates of deposit have original maturities of six months or less. Certificates of deposit are stated at cost which equals their fair market value. Prepaid Items Payments to vendors for insurance include costs applicable to the next accounting period and are recorded as prepaid items. 

Receivables Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable include all receivables greater than ninety days old. 
The Board maintains an inventory of office supplies. These items are expenses as purchased. 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost, if purchases or constructed. Assets acquired through contributions are capitalized at their estimated fair value or Cost to construct at the date of the construction. Equipment includes all items valued above $1,000. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets as follows: 
Automobiles Data Processing Equipment Furniture and Fixtures Building and Improvements 

5 years 5 years 10 years 40 years 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Restricted assets, as presented in the financial statements, represented items that are dedicated for the use of various components of the Board. 
Employees earn accumulated annual and sick leave at various rates, depending on their years of service. Annual and sick leave that may be accumulated by each employee is unlimited. Upon resignation or retirement, unused annual leave of up to 300 hours is paid to employees at the employee's current rate of pay. Upon retirement, annual leave is excess of 300 hours and unused sick leave is credited as earned service in computing retirement benefits. 

Long-Term Obligations Long-term obligations are reported at face value Post-emnlovment Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits The Board provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. The Board recognizes the cost of providing these retirees benefits as an expense when paid during the year. 
The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Service Code 457. The plan is administered by the Board. The plan, available to all full-time employees of the Board, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All amounts of compensation deferred, all property and rights purchased, and all income, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) held in trust by the insurance company for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. Participants may contribute up to 25% of their salary, but total contributions may not exceed $8,500 annually. All contributions are immediately vested. Net Assets Net assets are comprised of the various net earnings from operations, nonoperating revenues, expenses, and contributions of capital. Net assets are classified in the following three components: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds or 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted - Consists of external constraints placed on net assets used by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of the government or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. - Consists of all other assets that are not included in the other categories previously mentioned. NOTE 2: DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITU/ONS 
For reporting purposes, deposits with financial institutions include savings, demand deposits, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Under state law the Board may deposit funds within a fiscal agency bank selected and designated by the Lnterim Emergency Board. Further, the Board may invest in time certificates of deposits of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana, national banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, in savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations and savings banks and in share accounts and in share certificate accounts of federally or state chartered credit unions. Deposits in bank accounts are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal bank agent must secure these deposits. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These pledged securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank in the form of safekeeping receipts held by the State Treasurer. The deposits at December 31, 2003, were secured as follows: 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Deposits in bank accounts on Balance Sheet Bank Balances: 1. Insured (FDIC) or collateralized with securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name 2. Collateralized with securities held by pledging financial institution's trust department or agent in the entity's name 3. Uncollateralized, including any securities held for the entity but not in the entity's 
Total Bank Balances 
Bankin~ Institution 

DEPOSITS 1N BANK ACCOUNTS CASH CD'S TOTAL 

100.000 100,000 
1,145,173 2,059,643 3,204,816 

Program Amount 1. Hibernia National Bank Money Market $ 954,744 2. Hibernia National Bank CD'S 
NOTE 3 
NOTE 4 
The Board does not maintain investments accounts as authorized. 
At December 31, 2003, the Board had net receivable balances, totaling $ 263,645. 

Class of Receivable 
Assessments Allowance for doubtful accounts Accrued Interest 

General Restricted Total $ 338,890 (119,441) 1,874 $ 54,245 $ (12,263) 340 $ 42,322 
$ 393,135 (131,704) 2,214 

During 2003 the Board charged $ 25,508 to Bad Debt Expense 
$ 263,645 



NOTE 5 
LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
At December 31, 2003, for purpose of these f'mancial statements the due fi'om/to and transfer accounts have been eliminated. NOTE 6 
The Board follows the Louisiana Division of Administration's guidelines on capitalization of fixed assets. Depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets using the straight-line method. All fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost. A summary of changes in property and equipment follows 

Fiscal Year Ending December 3 I, 2003 
Building Building Improvement Land Equipment Auto Total 

Ending Balance 2002 $ 882,679 600,730 100,000 519,073 19,995 

Prior Period Adjustment Additions Deletions 
109,801 
28,441 
138.242 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2003 Ending Balance 2002 Prior Period Adjustment 

Ending Balance 2003 $ 882,679 710,531 100,000 64,855 482,659 19,995 64,855 
Additions Deletions Ending Balance 2003 



NOTE 7 
LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 
At December 31, 2003, the Board had payables totaling $ 268,442 as follows CLASS OF PAYABLES Accounts Payable Wages Payable Taxes & Accruals Payable Total Payables 

NOTE 8: RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

GENERAL $ 175,253 56,295 36,894 

The employees of the Board are members of the Louisiana State Employees Retirement System ("System"), a multiple-employer, public employee retirement system (PERS). The System is a statewide public retirement system for the benefit of the state employees, which is administered and controlled by a separate board of trustees. The system issues an annual publicly available fmancial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the system. That report may be obtained by contacting the Louisiana State Employee Retirement System at P.O. Box 44213, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804 or by calling (225) 922-0600. 
All full-time Board employees, who began state employment prior to age 60, are eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with 10 years of service. At retirement age, employees are entitled to annual benefits equal to 2.5 per cent of their highest consecutive 36 month average salary multiplied by their years of credited service plus $300 for employees hired before July 31, 1986. Vested age 55 with 25 years of service, or age 60 with 10 years of service. The system also provides death and disability benefits. Covered employees were required to contribute 7.5% of gross salary to the plan. The Board added an additional 14.1% contribution for the year. Contribution requirements to the System are set by statute and differ fi:om the contribution requirement determined using actuarial methods. Contributions to the retirement system for the years ended 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $ 221,007, $174,855 and $122,091, respectively. NOTE 9 
The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all of the Board employees become eligible for those benefits if the reach retirement age while working for the Board. Those benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DECEMBER 31, 2003 employees are provided through an insurance company whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the retired employees and by the Board based on a vesting schedule. The Board's cost of providing retiree health care and life insurance benefits are recognized as expenditures when the monthly premiums are paid. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners provided retirement benefits for 5 retired employees and the costs of these retiree benefits totaled $ 32,199. NOTE 10: COMPENSATED ABSENCES Accumulated annual leave is accrued in the accompanying financial statements. The Board's employees accumulated unlimited amounts of annual and sick leave at varying rates, as established by state regulations. Upon resignation or retirement, unused annual leave of up to 300 hours is paid to employees at the employee's current rate of pay. Upon retirement, annual leave in excess of 300 hours and unused sick leave is credited as earned service in computing retirement benefits. The current portion is recorded as a liability in the financial statements and represents the amount unpaid at December 31, 2003, which would normally be liquidated with expendable financial resources. Accumulated annual leave at December 31, 2003 $129,326 This amount is recorded in the financial statements 
NOTE 11: LEASES At December 31, 2003, the Board did not have any operating or capital leases. NOTE 12: GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds are accounted for in the liability section of the basic financial statements. The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2003. Compensated Absences , Long-term obligations at December 31, 2003 $ 129~326 
Long-term obligations at December 31, 2002 consisted of only compensated absences in the amount of $117,837. Compensated absences increased in the amount of $11,489 between 2002 and 2003. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DECEMBER 31, 2003 
The Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, automotive liability, and property insurance contracts and has purchased commercial insurance to provide coverage. NOTE 14: NET ASSETS Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. The composition of net assets was as follows: Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt $ 1,477,620 
Restricted Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

869,849 635.473 
Restricted net assets represent those assets that are not available for spending as a result of legislative requirements. The composition of the restricted net assets is Clinical Lab - $ 274,872, Continuing Medical Education - $ 74,837, and Physicians Health Program - $ 520,140. 
The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners did not receive any federal funds during the year ended December 31, 2003. 

NOTE 16 During February of 2004 the Louisiana State Legislature approved amendments to various revised statutes enabling the Board to increase license and renewal fees by almost double for all categories of licensees, except clinical laboratory licenses. The direct impact of these amendments has not been determined, but the Board's revenue is expected to increase by approximately 25% for 2004. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION DECEMBER 31, 2003 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA DECEMBER 31, 2003 SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM PAID BOARD MEMBERS 
NAME Dr. Melvin G. Bourgeois Dr. Kweli J. Amusa Dr. Elmo J. Laborde Dr. Kim E. Leblanc Dr. Keith C. Ferdinand Dr. Linda Gage-White Dr. Trenton James 

AMOUNT $ 2,800 2,700 7,500 
9,800 4,800 6,500 

TOTAL 34,100 

The schedule of per diem paid board members is presented in compliance with House Concurrent Resolution No. 54 oft he 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Board members are paid $100 for each day while engaged in Board meetings and official Board business, as authorized by Louisiana Revised Statute 37:1268. 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HOSPITALS STATE OF LOUUISIANA DECEMBER 31, 2003 

SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY THE DMSION OF ADMINISTRATION, OFFICE OF STATEWIDE REPORTING AND ACCOUNTING POLICY 



TRANSMITTAL LETTER AFFIDAVIT 

Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners STATE OF LOUISIANA Annual Financial Statements December 31, 2003 

Statements MD&A Balance Sheet Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets Statement of Activities Statement of Cash Flows Notes to the Financial Statements A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies B. Budgetary Accounting C. Deposits with Financial Institutions and Investments D. Capital Assets E. Inventories F. Restricted Assets G. Leave H. Retirement System Post Retirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits Leases Long-Term Liabilities Litigation Related Party Transactions Accounting Changes In-Kind Contributions Defeased Issues Cooperative Endeavors Government-Mandated Nonexchange Transactions (Grants) Violations of Finance-Related Legal or Contractual Provisions Short-Term Debt Disaggregation of Receivable Balances Disaggregation of Payable Balances Subsequent Events Segment Information Due to/Due from and Transfers Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets Prior-Year Restatement of Net Assets Schedules 1 Schedule of Per Diem Paid Board Members 2 Schedule of State Funding 3 Schedules of Long-Term Debt 4 Schedules of Long-Term Debt Amortization 15 Schedule of Comparison Figures and Instructions 

A B C D 



 

STATE OF LOUISIANA Annual Financial Statements Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2003 Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 
The Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiner's (the Board) (BTA) financial performance presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Board's (BTA) financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2003, This document focuses on the current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts in comparison with the prior year's information. Please read this document in con)unction with the addffional information contained in the Board's (BTA) financial statements, which begin on page 8. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS The Board's (BTA) assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2003 by $ 2,982,942, which represents a 26.68% decrease from last fiscal year. The Board's (BTA) revenue increased $199,831 (or 5.47%) 
The Board continues to have no debt except for compensated absences for employees in the amount of $129,326. Capital acquisitions in the amount of $138,242 were made during 2003 including $ 28,441 of equipment and $109,801 for improvements to our building. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

, .~ ~~t'.~= ?"~-~,,;; . . '" .'., '.,., '." ~.,-,...,.... *=- ,. :... :,:...,; i....--,-- .,~., .~....- .=~.:~.,..~.~ .,...=~. ......,. :....,..... ;i.,, .... ",, .. ~ .. ~ :l~a~agement'sDiscussio .0 :and ~nal.ysis 
~. :. ,. 'Basic "Financ a Statements = 

.,~ ~,, .... . ~ Required supp|ementary ,{nformation . .' . .,. ~ (other than MD&A)' 
These financial statements consist of three sections - Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial statements (including the notes to the financial statements), and required supplementary information. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Basic Financial Statements The basic financial statements present information for the Board (BTA) as a whole, in a format designed to make the statements easier for the reader to understand. The statements in this section include the Balance sheet; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets; and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Balance Sheet (pages 8 -9) presents the current and long term portions of assets and liabilities separately. The difference between total assets and total liabilities is net assets and may provide a useful indicator of whether the financia~ position of the Board (BTA) is improving or deteriorating. The Statement ues, Expenses, and Chanqes in Fund Net Assets (page 10) presents Board's (BTA) assets changed as a result of current year operations. is affected, all changes in net assets are reported when the underlying result, there are transactions included that wi/I not affect cash unti~ future 
information showing how Regardless of when cash transactions occur. As a fiscal periods. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY 
~ . " - Stalement of Ne~ Assets ~ .. ~ ~ .. ,. ,.....r.....~ .: ,..l.,,.,.=l,,.:..." . : ~ as of December:31: ~.~03 . .., ~ :'.". :. ' " .. ~ ...,..,,i(.jf~,~t~usar~ds3'- ".. '- .. .: . .. '.. "); !" . ~ :-:, ":" :~".~ -- -------7 .:' =...;..:L:::! "I ",',".'. ,.',. ':=, .i-'. ,'..': 

~ Current and ~th~:assets::: , :..:;.~cal~i~i.,~s~-~s.:"~:....:. : ": :':;": '":" " "Total assets .. Other liabilities ....-' -'. ~ . : :Total.liabil t bs': ~ . . ".., ..:.. :Netassets: ... ~ ..:. ..... ~ Invested,in .capital asset, s,. r~t:i0f del:it .Restri(~ted : ,..: : ' ~ .. ".:' .Unrestricted Tetalnet..assets :. ~ 

. :"" " : '2003 " " :, " ." .T:~:.: ~T-. ,.':,, .. ..:i -:.!:i."~::~:~ :" ~.":~ ~2. :. ' . -.~:, .".1' 4.:~S '; ,.: :' ;; '". ~ : ~ 4,.Be~o : ~ :::1:;S88 :[[: .~:.:.,.,....~.....::.,........ '.~ . ':" . " 1.~8i~'.' : , i.. ,. ':. .,.1;478 .870 ~ " :88.,fi $ 2,983~ ...$ 
1 ~440 952 1.676 '4, ='068 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Restricted net assets represent those assets that are not available for spending as a result of legislative requirements, donor agreements, or grant requirements. Conversely, unrestricted net assets are those that do not have any limitations on how these amounts may be spent~ Net assets of the Board (BTA) decreased by $1,085,468, or 26.68%, from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. One of the major causes of this decrease is the Board's expenses for legal representation and other outside service contracts~ 

Statement of.Revenues Exper~ses, .and ChaRges !n Fund Net Assets f o.~the yearn,ended December.31 2003,.:. : . ~ " " '.".i :': ::.=~/". " ' " ' .:",..;.-- : ~ 
:~t#.ei:a~r~g:raven u es ~ ~O~er~'t.,ig g bxpenses ~. ~ '...:. i...l.. ,. =;,:.... ,Operating 'income(Ioss~) Ndt~i-0~er~iqg'~Ve#Jues~exper~e~y: ' : . ; ':'.. U.:: ::.;!:.., =i/~i.,.."..; ./ :.' ' " i,lnoome(o~) before'transfer~ ..: .. ! ~!. ;...... i,,:,,::=;,:.~:.;:::;.!:i:...::!.i~!.:.'.i ... 

;.$ ... " : :3,8~:I... .$ .i= ::iI { ".'iii;:.. '.. ~,~,934~) ~ ' . '....:. . .. ,.~. ; :. .~t,1.'.13) ~ ."":" "r;~"; 2e 
Transfers in " " " .. _.:._~r;~et,=,-~ :,~,..,~:_,.... -,.. :.:. = . ... . .. - ,= ~ ... . . ~ "" ..i .",,'.'.' ~ ":"~ :: " :l~et'~ncrease/decreaseI.Jn net=as~lS 

~ " ::': ~ i .::.::.; ~,'!:':. i; .'~ ~ !... :.::.,28 : 

~ '3,589 ~4,794) , (1,205) : " :. '""'6{) " 60. 
s . . . ~(l,oa~ $ (,~,~,~. 

The Board's (BTA) total revenues increased by $ 199,631 or (5.47%)~ The total cost of all programs and services increased by $139,888 or less than 3%. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Another way to assess the financial health of the Board (BTA) is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows~ The Statement of Cash Flows assists readers of this statement to assess: 
~ The ability to generate future cash flows ~ The ability to meet obligations as they come due o A need for external financing 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Statement of Cash Flows, (in thousands) 

Cash and cash equivalents provided, used:by:, Operating activities : Capital Financial: Activities . : Non-capital= financing activities Investing.activities .-'. i. Net ncrease incash' an~.cash equivalen~ Cash andcash equi~/alents. , .. Beginning of year ~ Endof.year "": '" ". : 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
Capital Assets 

~ {,,92~1) $ (,~38). "..i , 26 = 
".. :, "~04~ $ 'i :! :.,3-8...1,4 

200~ .(8:~8) (~.~0) 60 
,., .:. . =. " 4,904 

At the end of 2003, the Board (BTA) had $1,477,620 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including equipment, a building, building improvements and an automobile. (See Table below) This amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $ 37,877, or 2.6%, over last year. 
Capital Assets at Year-end (Net of Depreciation, in thousands) 

Land Buildings and improvements Equipment Auto Infrastructure 
2003 2002 100 $ ,294 72 12 

100 ,224 100 16 
Totals $ $ 1.478 $ $ 1,440 

This year's major additions included (in thousands) ~ 110 for improvements to our building ~ 28 for computer and other equipment 
Debt The Board (BTA) had $ NO bonds and notes outstanding at year-end, compared to $ NONE last year an increase of - as shown in the table below. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 'LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Outstanding Debt at Year-end (in thousands) 

General Obligation Bonds $ Revenue Bonds and Notes Totals $ $ $ $ 
2002 

The Board (BTA) has claims and judgments of $ 0 outstanding at year-end compared with $ 0 last year. Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave in the amount of $129,326 compared with $117,837 in the prior year. VARIATIONS BETWEEN ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGETS Revenues were approximately $11,248 over budget and expenditures were $ 340,804 more than budget due in part to contractual and professional services and personnel costs. ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES The Board's (BTA) elected and appointed officials considered the following factors and indicators when setting next year's budget, rates, and fees. These factors and indicators include: ~ Expected revenues ~ Staffing and salaries ~ Outside services The Board (BTA) expects that next year's results will improve based on the following ~ Implementation of Legislature approved increases in license and renewal rates 
CONTACTING THE BOARD'S (BTA) MANAGEMENT This financial report is designed provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Board's (BTA) finances and to show the Board's (BTA) accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact John Bobear, M.D., Executive Director, P.O. Box 30250, New Orleans LA 30250. 



STP, TE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS(BTA) BALANCE SHEET AS OF DECEMBER Zl, 2003 ASSETS CURRENT ASSETS Cash and cash eduivatente (Note C1) Investments (Note C2) Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful acoounts)(Note U) Due from other funds (Note Y) Due from federal ~ovemment Inventories Prepayments Notes receivable Other current assets Total current assets NONCURRENT ASSETS: Restricted assets (Note F): Cash Jnvesbllents " Receivables Notes receivable Capital assets (net of depreciation)(Note D) Land Buildings and improvements Machinery and equipment Infrastructure Construction in progress Other noncurrent assets Totat noncurrent assets Total assets LIABILITIES CURRENT LIABILITIES Accounts peyable and accruals {Note V) Due to other funds (Note Y) Due to federal qovemment Deferred revenues Amounts held in custody for others Other current liabilities Current portion of Ioog-tsrrn liabilities: Contracts payable Reimbursement contracts payable Compensated absences payable (Note K} Capital lease obligafions - (Note J) Notes payable Liabilities payable from restricted assets (Note Z) Bonds payable Other fong-term liabilities Total current liabilities NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES: Contracts payable Reimbursement contracts payable Compensated absences payable (Note K) Capital lease ob[igafions (Note J) Notes peyable Liabilities payable from restricted assets (Note Z1 Bonds peyabie Other Ion.q-term fiabilities Totel long-term fiabifi~es Total liabilities NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets, net of related debt Restricted for:. Capital projects Debt service Unemployment compensation Other specific purposes Unrestricted Total net assets Total liabilities and net assets 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. Statement A 

2.024.244 

990.143 

268.442 

477 620 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
OPERATING REVENUES Sales of commodities and services Assessments Use of money and pmperb/ Licenses, permits, and fees Other Total operating revenues OPERATING EXPENSES Cost of sales and services Administrative Depraciation Amortization Total operating expenses Operating income(loss} NON-OPERATING State appropriations Intergovemmental revenues (expenses) Taxes Use of money and property Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets Federal grants Interest expense Other Total non-operating revenues(expenses) income(loss) before contributions and transfers Capital contributions Transfers in Transfers out Change in net assets Total net assets - beginning Total net assets - ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. Statement B 

4.834.534 
1.112.712 

1.085.468 
1,085,468 4.068.410 2.982.942 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Program Revenues Operating Capital Charges for Grants and Grants and Services Contributions Contributions 

Component Unit: LSBME $ 4,933,942 $ 3,821,230 $ 
General revenues: Taxes State appropriations Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs Interest Miscellaneous Special items Transfers Total general revenues, special items, and transfers Change in net assets Net assets - beginning Net assets - ending 

S~mentC 

Net(Expense) Revenue and Changesin Net Assets 
(1,112,712) 

27,244 
27,244 (1,085,468) 4,068,410 2,982,942 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 
Cash flows from operating activities Cash received from customers $ 3.784.413 Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services Cash payments to employees for services Payments in lieu of taxes Internal activity-payments to other funds Claims paid to outsiders Other operating revenues(expenses) Net cash provided(used) by operating activities Cash flows from non-capital financing activities State appropriations Proceeds from sale of bonds Principal paid on bonds Interest paid on bond maturities Proceeds from issuance of notes payable Principal paid on notes payable Interest paid on notes payable Operating grants received Other Net cash provided(used) by non-capital financing activities Cash flows from capital and related financing Proceeds from issuance of notes payable Principal paid on notes payable Interest paid on notes payable Acquisition/construction of capital assets Proceeds from sale of capital assets Capital contributions Other Net cash provided(used) by capital and related financing activities Cash flows from investing activities Purchases of investment securities proceeds from sale of investment securities Interest and dividends earned on investment securities Net cash provided(used) by investing activities Net increase(decreese) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2.522.942 2.181.248 

38.242 

26285 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. Statement D 

26.285 (1,031,734) 4.046.121 $ 3 ~14 387 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER, 2003 
Reconciliation of operating income(loss) to net cash provided(used) by operating activities: Operating income(loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash Depreciation/amortization Compensated absences, Provision for uncollectible accounts Changes in assets and liabilities: (Increase)decrease in accounts receivable, net (Increase)decrease in due from other funds (Increase)decrease in prepayments (Increase)decrease in inventories (Increase)decrease in other assets Increase(decrease) in accounts payable and accruals Increase(decrease) in accrued payroll and related benefits Increase(decrease) in compensated absences payable Increase(decrease) in due to other funds Increase(decrease) in deferred revenues Increase(decrease) in other liabilities Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 
Schedule of noncash investing, capital, and financing activities 
Borrowing under capital lease Contributions of fixed assets Purchases of equipment on account Asset trade-ins Other (specify) 
Total noncash investing, capital, and financing activities: 

99.408 

(Concluded) The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement Statement D 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 INTRODUCTION The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners (the Board) (BTA) was created by the Louisiana State Legislature under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 37:1261-1292. The following is a brief description of the operations of the Board (BTA), which includes the parish/parishes in which the Board (BTA) is located: The Board's offices are located in New Orleans. Louisiana in Orleans Parish The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners (the Board) is a component unit of the State of Louisiana created within the Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals, as provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 37:1261-1292. The board is charged with the responsibility of administering practice acts providing for the l/censure of Doctors of Medicine, Doctors of Osteopathy, Doctors of Podiatry, Physician Assistants, Acupuncturists, Acupuncturists Assistants, Occupational Therapists, Occupational Therapy Assistants, Respiratory Therapists, Respiratory Therapist Technicians Midwives, Clinical Exercise physiologists, Athletic Trainers, Radiological Technologists, Emergency Medical Technicians (Intermediate and Paramedic) and Clinical Laboratory Personnel. Operations of the Board are funded entirely through self-generated revenues. As to all professions over which it has jurisdiction, the Board's principal functions are essentially the same: (a) Licensing/Certification. The Board examines applicants for l/censure or certification to validate minimum competence for practice by verifying that they possess the educational and other credentials prescribed by statute and Board rules, investigation of the applicant's l/censure status and history in other jurisdictions, and by examination. Licenses/certifications are generally renewed annually (some biannually) pursuant to re- verification of certain requirements and conditions. Renewals for some categories are on a calendar year basis, but the majority are based on a birth month schedule. (b) Regulations. Pursuant to its rulemaking authority under the practices acts it administers, and in accordance with the Administrative Procedures Act, the Board promulgates both procedural rules implementing its licensing/certification authority and substantive rules regulating practice. (c) Enforcement. The Board investigates consumer, patient and licensee complaints and alleged or indicated violations of the several practices acts and, upon a finding of probable cause initiates and conducts administrative disciplinary proceedings to adjudicate whether legal cause exists for the suspension, revocation or imposition of probationary terms and/or conditions on any license or certification. The Board's disciplinary authority includes limited authority to impose monetary fines and obtain reimbursement of costs and attorneys fees incurred by the Board in the investigation and prosecution of licensees. The Board also possesses and employs authority to take action against unauthorized practitioners by means of civil injunctive proceedings. (d) Advisory Rulinqs. The Board serves and informational and advisory role to the public, its constituent licensees and State government by providing declaratory rulings, advisory opinions and Statements of Position on various medical/legal issues within its jurisdiction. (e) Other Activities. The Board participates in a Physicians health Program, jointly organized and conducted with the Louisiana State Medical Society, to identify physically or mentally impaired (or potentially impaired) physicians toward securing timely treatment and rehabilitation for the protection of the public. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA L0~UISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 The Board is composed of seven members. Until January 1, 2000 the seven members were appointed by the governor from lists of names submitted by the Louisiana State Medical Society and the Louisiana Medical Association. Effective January 1,2000 the board will consist of seven voting members appointed by the governor and subject to Senate confirmation as follows: a. Four members from lists of names submitted by the Louisiana State Medical Society. One of the members appointed shall practice in a parish or municipality with a population of less than twenty thousand. b. Two members from lists submitted by the Louisiana Medical Association 
c. One member from a list submitted by the Louisiana Academy of Family Practice Physicians. All voting members of the board shall be graduate physicians or surgeons and practitioners. Four of the members appointed for terms beginning January 1,2000, shall be appointed the initial terms of four years and three of the members shall be appointed to initial terms of two years. 

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
In April of 1984, the Financial Accounting Foundation established the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) to promulgate generally accepted accounting principles and reporting standards with respect to activities and transactions of state and local governmental entities. The GASB has issued a Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are recognized as generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with such principles. The accompanying financial statements of the Board present information only as to the transactions of the programs of the Board as authorized by Louisiana statutes and administrative regulations. Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. The accounts of the Board are maintained in accordance with applicable statutory provisions and the regulations of the Division of Administration - Office of Statewide Reporting and Accounting Policy as follows: 
Revenues are recognized using the full accrual basis of accounting; therefore, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned and become measurable. 



~TATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Expenses are recognized on the accrual basis; therefore, expenses, including salaries, are recognized in the period incurred, if measurable. 

B. BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 

C 

The appropriations made for the operations of the various programs of the Board (BTA) are annual lapsing appropriations.. 1 2 3 
4 
The budgetary process is an annual appropriation valid for one year. The agency is prohibited by statute from over expending the categories established in the budget. Budget revisions are granted by the Joint Legislative Budget Committee, a committee of the Louisiana Legislature. Interim emergency appropriations may be granted by the Intedm Emergency Board. The budgetary information included in the financial statements include the original appropriation plus subsequent amendments as follows: 

Original approved budget Amendments: 
Final approved budget 
DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS (If all agency cash and investments are deposited in the State Treasury, disregard Note C.) 1. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS For reporting purposes, deposits with financial institutions include savings, demand deposits, time deposits, and certificates of deposit. Under state law the Board (BTA) may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank selected and designated by the Interim Emergency Board. Further, the (BTA) may invest in time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana, national banks having their principal office in the state of Louisiana, in savings accounts or shares of savings and loan associations and savings banks and in share accounts and share certificate accounts of federally or state chartered credit unions. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets with a maturity of three months or less when purchased) are considered to be cash equivalents. Deposits in bank accounts are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These pledged securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank in the form of safekeeping receipts held by the State Treasurer. Following the issuance of GASB Statement 3, deposits were classified into three categories of custodial credit risk depending on whether they were insured or collateralized, and who held the collateral and how it was held. Category 1 - Deposits that are covered by insurance (FDIC) or conateralized with securities that are held by the entity in the entity's name or registered in the entity's name. (separate disclosure no longer required) Cateqory 2 - Deposits that are not insured but are collateralized with securities that are held by the financial institution's trust department or agent and are in the entity's name. (separate disclosure no longer required) Cateqorv 3 - Deposits that are not covered by insurance and also are not oollateralized. Not collateralized includes when the securities (collateral) are held by the financial institution's trust department or agent and they are not in the entity's name. (separate disclosure still required) GASB Statement 40 only requires any category 3 deposits to be disclosed in the custodial credit risk section of Note C. If an entity has deposits exposed to custodial credit risk category 3, it should disclose the amount of those balances, the fact that they are uninsured, and whether the balances are either uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent, but not in the entity's name. 
The deposits at December 31,2003, consisted of the following 

Bank balances (category 3 only, if any) Identify amounts reported as category 3 by the deecriptions below:. a. Uninsured and uncollateralized b. Uninsured and collate~alized with secur~es held by the pledging institution c. Uninsured and collateralized with securities heJd by the pledging institution's trust deparlment or agent 

Certificates Cash of Deposit 954,744 $ 2,059,643 $ 

Total bank balances (All categories including category 3 reported above) $ 1,245, ~ 73 $ 

Tot~ $ 3,014,387.00 

-$ -$ 
2,059,643 $ $ 3,304,8"/6.00 

NOTE: The "Total Bank Balances" will not necessarily equal the "Deposits in Bank Account per Balance Sheet" The following is a breakdown by banking institution, program, account number, and amount of the balances shown above: 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 Bankino institution Proqram Hibernia National Bank checking accounts Hibemia National Bank certificates of deposi 
Total 

Amount $ 1,116,437 
4,046A21 

Cash in State Ti'easury and petty cash are not required to be reported in the note disclosure. However, to aid in reconciling amounts reported on the balance sheet to amounts reported in this note, list below any cash in treasury and petty cash that are included on the balance sheet. 
INVESTMENTS The authorized by 

Cash in State Treasury $ Petty cash $ 
(BTA) does/does not maintain investment accounts as (Note legal provisions authorizing investments by (BTA)) Investments can be classified according to the level of risk to the entity. Using the following categories, list each type of investment disclosing the carrying amount, market value, and applicable category of risk. Beginning with fiscal year ending June 30, 2004, only risk category 3 has to be broken out separately. However, the total reported amount and fair value columns still must be reported for total investments (including category 3). Category 1 - Insured or registered in the entity's name, or securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name. (separate disclosure no longer required) Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the entiWs name. (separate disclosure no longer required) Cate,qory 3 - Unsecured and unregistered with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent (separate disclosure still required) NOTE: GASB Statement 40 requires investments to be listed by type, and whether any of those are category 3 investments. If so, those category 3 investments are reported in one of two separate columns depending upon whether they are held by a counterparty, or held by a counterparty's trust department or agent not in the entity's name. 



ST~ATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

Type of Investment Repurchase agreements U.S. Government securities'~ Common & preferred stock Commercial paper Corporate bonds Other: (identify) 

Total investments 

Amount Reported In Risk 
Held by Counterparty 

Held by Counterparty's Trust Dept. or Agent Not in Entity's Name $ $ 
Total Reported Amount - All Categories (Including Cateaorv 3) 

-$ -$ 

Total Fair Value - All Categories (Including Category 3) 

The institution does/does not (circle one) invest in derivatives as part of its investment policy Accordingly, the exposure to risks from these investments is as follows: credit risk market risk legal risk 
3. Other Disclosures Required for Investments a. Investments in pools managed by other governments or mutual funds 
b. Securities undedying reverse repurchase agreements 
c. Unrealized investment losses 
Commitments as of (fiscal close), to resell securities under yield maintenance repurchase agreements: 1. Carrying amount and market value at June 30 of securities to be resold 2. Description of the terms of the agreement 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 'LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 e. Losses during the year due to default by counterparties to deposit or investment transactions 
Amounts recovered from prior-period losses which are not shown separately on the balance sheet 
g. Source of legal or contractual authorization for use of reverse repurchase agreements 

m 

Credit risk related to the reverse repurchase agreements outstanding at year end, that is, the aggregate amount of reverse repurchase agreement obligations including accrued interest compared to aggregate market value of the securities underlying those agreements including interest Commitments on agreements (fiscal close), to repurchase securities under yield maintenance 
Market value on (fiscal close), of the securities to be repurchased 

n. Amounts recovered from prior-period losses which are not separately shown on the operating statement 
o. Methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair value of investments, if fair value is not based on quoted market prices 
p. Basis for determining which investments, if any, are reported at amortized cost 
q. For investments in external investment pools that are not SEC-registered, a brief description of any regulatory oversight for the pool 
r. Whether the fair value of your investment in the external investment pool is the same as the value of the pool shares 
s. Any involuntary participation in an external investment pool 7 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Whether you are unable to obtain information from a pool sponsor to determine the fair value of your investment in the pool, methods used and significant assumptions made in determining that fair value and the reasons for having had to make such an estimate 
u. Any income from investments associated with one fund that is assigned to another fund 
Credit v. Briefly describe the deposit and/or investment policies related to the custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk disclosed in this note. If no policy exists concerning the risks disclosed, please state that fact. 
w List, by amount and issuer (not including U.S. government securities, mutual funds, and investment pools), investments in any one issuer that represents 5% or more of total investments 
List the fair value and terms of any debt investments that are highly sensitive to changes in interest rates due to the terms of the investment (eg. coupon multipliers, reset dates, etc.) 
y. Disclose the credit risk of debt investments by credit quality ratings as described by rating agencies as of the fiscal year end. All debt investments regardless of type can be aggregated by credit quality rating (if any are unratad, disclose that amount). 
Disclose the interest rate risk of debt investments by listing the investment type and the method that is used to identify and manage the interest rate risk of those investments (by, using one of the following 5 methods that is used to identify and manage interest rate risk: a) segmented time distribution, b) specific identification, c) weighted average maturity, d) duration, or e) simulation model.) 
Disclose the U.S. dollar balances of any deposits or investments that are exposed to foreign currency risk (deposits or investments denominated in foreign currencies). List by currency denomination and investment type, if applicable 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 D. CAPITAL ASSETS - INCLUDING CAPITAL LEASES ASSETS The fixed assets used in the Special Purpose Government Engaged only in Business-Type Activities are included on the balance sheet of the entity and are capitalized at cost. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by the entity are charged as an expense against operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the balance sheet. Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is computed by the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets. Year ended December 31, 2003 Balance '12J31/02 Capital assets not beingdepreciated Land 100,000 Non-depreciable land improvements Capitalized collections Construction in progress Total capital assets not being depreciated 100,000 Other capital assets Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 539,068 Lass accumulated depreciation (423,138) Total fumiturs, fixtures, and equipment 115,930 Buildings and improvements Less accumulated deprectaUon Totsl buildings and improvements Depredable land improvements Less accumulated depreciation Total depreciable land improvements n frastructure Less accumulated depredation Total infrastructure Total other capital assets Capital Asset Summary: Capital assets not being deprectated Other capital assets, at cost Total cost of capital assets Less accumulated depreciation Capital assets, net 

1,483,409 (259,596) 1,223,813 

1.339.743 
100,000 2,022,477 2,122A77 (682,734) 

Prior Penod Aalustmem 

* Should be used only for these completed projects coming out of with transfers reported elsewhere in this packet. E. INVENTORIES The unit's inventories are valued at perpetual inventories and are expensed when SHOWN AS A PREPAYMENT. 

Adjusted Balance 12J31/02 
100,000 
100,000 

Balance Addl~ons Transfers* Retirements 12/31/03 

- 539,068 28,441 - (423,138) (59,578) - 116,930 (31,137) -- 1,483,409 109,801 - (259,596) (39,830) -- 1,223,813 69,971 

38,834 
100,000 2,022,477 138,242 2,122,477 138,242 (682,734) (99,406) 1,439,743 38,834 

100,000 
100.000 

(957) 

1,593,210 (299,426) 1,293,784 

- - 100,000 - (64,865) 2,095,864 - (64,855) 2,195,864 - 63,898 (718,244) (957) to fixed assets; not associated 
(method of valuation). These are used. NOTE: DO NOT INCLUDE POSTAGE. THIS IS 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 F. RESTRICTED ASSETS Restricted assets in the Board (BTA) at December 31, 2003 (fiscal year end), reflected at $1,044,728 in the non-current assets section on Statement A, consist of $ 990,143 in cash with fiscal agent and $ 54,585 receivables. State the purpose of the restrictions: These assets are restricted by Legislation and are for the Board's CME, CLAB and PHP programs. 
G. LEAVE 1. COMPENSATED ABSENCES The Board (BTA) has the following policy on annual and sick leave Accumulated annual leave is accrued in the accompanying financial statements. The Board's employees accumulated unlimited amounts of annual and sick leave at varying rates, as established by state regulations. Upon resignation or retirement, unused annual leave of up to 300 hours is paid to employees at the employee's current rate of pay. Upon retirement, annual leave in excess of 300 hours and unused sick leave is credited as earned service in computing retirement benefits. The current portion is recorded as a liability in the financial statements and represents the amount unpaid at December 31,2003, which would normally be liquidated with expendable financial resources. 
An example disclosure follows 2. COMPENSATORY LEAVE Employees who are considered having non-exempt status according to the guidelines contained in the Fair Labor Standards Act may be paid for compensatory leave earned (K-time). Upon termination or transfer, an employee will be paid for any time and one-half compensatory leave earned and may or may not be paid for any straight hour-for-hour compensatory leave earned. Compensation paid will be based on the employees' hourly rate of pay at termination or transfer. The liability for accrued payable compensatory leave at December 31, 2003 computed in accordance with the Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section C60.105 is estimated to be $ O. The leave payable is recorded in the accompanying financial statements, 
H. RETIREMENT SYSTEM Substantially all of the employees of the Board (BTA) are members of the Louisiana State Employees Retirement System (System), a cost sharing multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. The System is a statewide public employee retirement system (PERS) for the benefit of state employees, which is administered and controlled by a separate board of trustees. All full-time Board (BTA) employees are eligible to participate in the System. Benefits vest with 10 years of service. At retirement age, employees are entitled to annual benefits equal to $300 plus 2.5% of their highest consecutive 36 months' average salary multiplied by their years of credited service. Vested employees are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life at (a) any age with 30 years of service, (b) age 55 with 25 years of service, or (c) age 60 with 10 years of service. In addition, vested employees have the option of reduced benefits at any age with 20 years of service. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the State Employees 

10 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 Retirement System, Post Office Box 44213, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-4213, or by calling (225) 922- 0608 or (800) 256-3000. Members are required by state statute to contribute 7.5% of gross salary, and the (BTA) is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate as required by R.S. 11:102. The contribution rate for the fiscal year ended December 3t, 2003 was 14.1% of annual covered payroll. The Board's (BTA) contributions to the System for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, were $221,007, $174,855, and $122,091, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
L POST RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS GASB 12 requires the following disclosures about an employer's accounting for post retirement health care and life insurance benefits: A description of the benefits provided and the employee group covered. A description of the accounting and funding policies followed for those benefits. The cost of those benefits recognized for the period, unless the costs are not readily determinable.** The effect of significant matters affecting the comparability of the costs recognized for all periods presented. **If the cost of any post retirement health care or life insurance benefits cannot readily be separated fi'om the cost of providing such benefits for active employees or otherwise be reasonably approximated, the total cost of providing those benefits to active employees and retirees, as well as the number of active employees and the number of retirees covered by the plan must be disclosed. Substantially all Board (BTA) employees become eligible for post employment health care, dental and life insurance benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Board (BTA). These benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided through an insurance company whose premiums are paid jointly by the employee and the Board (BTA). For 2003, the cost of providing those benefits for the 5 retirees totaled $ 32,199. The . (BTA) provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its retired employees. Substantially all (BTA) employees become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the (BTA). Those benefits for retirees and similar benefits for active employees are provided through an insurance company whose monthly premiums are paid jointly by the employee and by the (BTA). [The (BTA) recognizes the cost of providing these benefits ((BTA)'s portion of premiums) as an expenditure when paid during the year, which was $ for the year ended 20 . The cost of providing those benefits for the cost of providing benefits for the retiree health care and life insurance are paid. For the year ended $ .).1 
J. LEASES 1. OPERATING LEASES 

retirees is not separable from __  active employees.] (or, [The (BTA)'s cost of providing benefits are recognized as expenditures when the monthly premiums , 20 the costs of __  retiree benefits totaled 

The total payments for operating leases during schedule of payments for operating leases follows: fiscal year amounted to $ . A 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Nature oflease FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 FY2008 FY2009 $ $ $ $ $ 

Tota 
2. CAPITAL LEASES 

FY2010- 2014 

$ $ $ - $ - $ - ~ 

FY2015- 2019 

Capital leases are (are not) recognized in the accompanying financial statements. The amounts to be accrued for capital leases and the disclosures required for capital and operating leases by National Council on Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 5, as adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and FASB 13 should be reported on the following schedules: Capital leases are defined as an arrangement in which any one of the following conditions apply: (I) ownership transfers by the end of the lease, (2) the lease contains a bargain purchase option, (3) the lease term is 75% of the asset life or, (4) the discounted minimum lease payments are 90% of the fair market value of the asset. 

Natumoflease a. Office space 
b. Equipment c. Land Total 

Gross Amount of Leased Asset (Historical Costs) 
Remaining intarestto end of lease 

$ $ 

Remaining principalto end of lease 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of (last day of your fiscal year) and a breakdown of yearly principal and interest: 

12 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 'LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Year ending June 30 : 2005 $ 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 Total minimum lease payments Less amounts representing executory costs Net minimum lease payments Less amounts representing interest Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 

Nature of lease a. Office space $ b. Equipment c. Land Total $ 

Gross Amount of Leased Asset (Historical Costs) 
Remaining interest to end of lease $ 
$ $ 

Remaining principal to end of lease. 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of (last day of your fiscal year) and a breakdown of yearly principal and interest: 
Year ending June 30: 2005 $ 2006 2007 2006 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 Total minimum lease payments Less amounts representing executory costs Net minimum lease payments Less amounts representing interest Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 13 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 

a. Office space b. Equipment c. Land Total 

Gross Amount of Leased Asset (Historical Costs) $ 
Remaining interest to end of lease 
$ $ 

Remaining principal to end of le~se 

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of (last day of your fiscal year) and a breakdown of yearly principal and interest: 
Year ending June 30 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 Total minimum lease payments Less amounts representing executory costs Net minimum lease payments Less amounts representing interest Present value of net minimum lease payments 

3. LESSOR DIRECT FINANCING LEASES A lease is classified as a direct financing lease (1) when any one of the four capitalization criteria used to define a capital lease for the lessee is met and (2) when both the following criteria are satisfied: Collectibility of the minimum lease payments is reasonably predictable. No important uncertainties surround the amount of the unreimbursable costs yet to be incurred by the lessor under the lease. 

14 



 
STATE OF LOUISIANA "LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 Provide a general description of the direct financing agreement, and complete the chart below: 
a. Office space b. Equipment c. Land Less amounts representing executory costs Minimum lease payment receivable Less allowance for doubtful-eccounts Net minimum lease payments receivable Less estimated residual value of leased property Less unearned income Net inveslment in direct financing lease 

Minimum lease payment receivable Remaining interest .to end of lease Remaining principal to end of lease 

Minimum lease payments do not include contingent rentals which may be received as stipulated in the lease contracts. Contingent rental payments occur if, for example, the use of the equipment, land, or building etc., exceeds a certain level of activity each year. Contingent rentals received for fiscal year 2004 were $ " for office space, $ for equipment, and $ for land. The following is a schedule by year of minimum ~eases receivable for the remaining fiscal years of the lease as of (the last day of your fiscal year) Yeerendiog 2005 2OO6 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 To~l 4. LESSOR - OPERATING LEASE When a lease agreement does not satisfy at least one of the four criteria (common to both lessee and lessor accounting), and both of the criteria for a lessor (collectibility and no uncertain reimbursable costs), the lease is classified as an operating lease. In an operating lease, there is no simulated sale and the lessor simply records rent revenues as they become measurable and available. Provide the cost and carrying amount, if different, of property on lease or held for lease organized by major class of property and the amount of accumulated depreciation as of __  20 
a. Office space b. Equipment c. Land Toml 

15 

Accumulated depreciation Carrying amount 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rentals on non-cencetabte operating tease(s) as of (the last day of your fiscal year) 
Year Ended June 30, Office Space Equipment 2OO5 $ $ $ 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 Total 

Land Other Total 

-$ -$ -$ -$ Current year lease revenues received in fiscal year __ totaled $ Contingent rentals received from operating leases received for your fiscal year was $ for office space, $ for equipment, and $ for land 
K. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the entity for the year ended December 31 2003: 

Bonds and notes payable: Notes payable Reimbursement contracts payable Bonds payable Total notes and bonds Other liabilities: Contracts payable Compensated absences payable Capital lease obligations Liabilities payable from restricted assets Claims and litigation Other long-term liabilities Total other liabilities 
Total long-term liabilities 

Balance 31 -Dec 2002 Additions 

117,837 
117.837 
117,837 

11.489 
11,489 
11.489 

Balance 31-Dec 2003 

129,326 
129.326 

Amounts due within one year 

A detailed summary, by issues, of all debt outstanding at June 30, 20, including outstanding interest of $ is shown on schedule 4. Schedule 5 is an amortization schedule of the outstanding debt. (Send OSRAP a copy of the amortization schedule for any new debt issued.) 

16 



STATE OF LOUISIANA 'LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
L. LITIGATION 1. The 
Date of Action 

Totals 

(BTA) is a defendant in litigation seeking damages as follows 
Description of Litigation and Probable outcome (Remote, Primary Damages Claimed 

- $ 

insurance Coverage 

The (BTA)'s legal advisor estimates that potential claims not covered by insurance would affect the financial statement as follows (would not materially affect the financial statements or is unable tc estimate the effect on the financial statement) 2. Claims and litigation costs of $ the accompanying financial statement. 
M. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

were incurred in the current year and are reflected in 
(FAS8 57 requires disclosure of the description of the relationship, the transaction(s), the dollar amount of the transaction(s) and any amounts due to or from which result from related party transactions. List all related party transactions) 
N. ACCOUNTING CHANGES Accounting changes made during the year involved a change in accounting estimate, error or entity). The effect of the change is being shown in 
O. IN-KIND (List all in-kind contributions that are not included in the accompanying financial statements.) 

Total 

Cost/Estimated Cost/Fair Market 

(principle 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
P. DEFEASED ISSUES In , 20 , the .(BTA). issued $ of taxable bonds. The purpose of the issue was to provide monies to advance refund portions of bonds. In order to refund the bonds, portions of the proceeds of the new issue $ , plus an additional $ of sinking fund monies together with certain other funds and/or securities, were deposited and held in an escrow fund created pursuant to an escrow deposit agreement dated , between the (BTA) and the escrow trustee. The amount in the escrow, together with interest earnings, will be used to pay the principal, redemption premium, and interest when due. The refunding resulted in reducing the total debt service payments by almost $ and gave the (BTA) an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt )of $ 
Q. COOPERATIVE ENDEAVORS LRS 33:9022 defines cooperative endeavors as any form of economic development assistance between and among the state of Louisiana, its local governmental subdivisions, political corporations, public benefit corporations, the United States government or its agencies, or any public or private association, corporation, or individual. The term cooperative endeavor includes cooperative financing, cooperative development, or any form of cooperative economic development activity. The state of Louisiana has entered into cooperative endeavor agreements with certain entities aimed at developing the economy of the state. Some cooperative endeavor contracts are not coded with a document type of "COP" on the Contract Financial Management Subsystem (CFMS), but are considered cooperative endeavors. Include these below with your cooperative endeavor contracts coded with a document type of "COP". Examples of contracts that are considered cooperative endeavors, but are not coded with a document type of "COP" include contracts that fall under delegated authority, Facility Planning and Control "CEA" contracts, certain federal government contracts, contracts that legislative auditors may have designated as such within your agency, work incumbent programs, etc. In prior years, this information was requested as supplemental documentation after the AFRs were submitted, usually in October or November. The liability outstanding as of June 30, 2004, by funding source, is as follows 

Fundinq Source State General Fund Self-generated revenue Statutorily dedicated revenue General obligation bonds Federal funds Interagency transfers Other funds/combination 

Balance June 30 2004 

NOTE: Amounts in excess of contract limits cannot be used to reduce the outstanding contract balance at June 30, 2004. For example, if a contract specifies a percentage of usage for each month (25%) and usage exceeds that percentage (75%), you cannot claim actual usage that exceeds contract requirements (50%). NOTE: In order to compute your ending balances by funding source, you should begin with your balances at June 30, 2003. These amounts will be increased by amounts for new contracts and amendments and decreased for payments as well as for liquidations. 18 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
R. GOVERNMENT-MANDATED NONEXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (GRANTS) The following government-mandated nonexchange transactions (grants) were received during fiscal year 2003-2004: CFDA Number P~qmm Name 

Total government-mandated nonexchange transactions (grants) 

Sta~ Match Pemenmge Total Amount of Grant 

S. VIOLATIONS OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL OR CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS At June 30, 20 , the (BTA) The was not in compliance with the provisions of Bond Reserve Covenant that requires to correct this deficiency (BTA) did 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 U. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLE BALANCES Receivables at December 31. 2003, were as follows 
Activib/ LSBME Accrued interest Gross receivables Less allowance for uncollectible accounts Receivables, net 

Customer Receivables Taxes Receivables from other Other Totat Governments Receivables Receivables $ 393,135 $ $ $ $ 393,135 2,214 2,214 
$ 393,136 ~ - ~ ~ 2.214 131.704 $ 261,431 

Amounts not scheduled for collection during the subsequent year $ 
V. DISAGGREGATION OF PAYABLE BALANCES Payables at December 31, 2003, were as follows 
Activity LSBME 

Salaries and Vendors Benefits 

131.704 2,214 $ 263,645 

Accrued Interest Other Payables Total Payables $ 36,894 $ 268,442 
Total payables $ 175,253 $ 56,295 ~ $ 

W. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
36.894 $ 268,442 

During February of 2004 the Louisiana State Legislature approved amendments to various revised statutes enabling the Board to increase license and renewal fees by almost double for all categories of licensees, except clinical laboratory licenses. The direct impact of these amendments has not been determined, but the Board's revenue is expected to increase by approximately 25% for 2004. 
X. SEGMENT INFORMATION Governments that report enterprise funds or that use enterprise fund accounting and reporting standards to report their activities are required to present segment information for those activities in the notes to the financial statements. For purposes of this disclosure, a segment is an identifiable activity (or group of activities), reported as or within an enterprise fund or an other stand-alone entity that has one or more bonds or other debt instruments outstanding, with a revenue stream pledged in support of that debt. In addition, the activity's revenues, expenses, gains and losses, assets, and liabilities are required to be accounted for separately. This requirement for separate accounting applies if imposed by an external party, such as accounting and reporting requirements set forth in bond indentures. Disclosure requirements for each segment should be met by identifying the types of goods and services provided and 



,STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 by presenting condensed financial statements in the notes, including the elements in A through C below (GASB 34, paragraph 122, as modified by GASB 37, paragraph 17.) Type of goods or services provided by the segment A. Condensed balance sheet: (1) Total assets - distinguishing between current assets, capital assets, and other assets. Amounts receivable from other funds or BTA's should be reported separately. (2) Total liabilities - distinguishing between current and long-term amounts. Amounts payable to other funds or BTA's should be reported separately. (3) Total~ bet assets - distinguishing among restricted (separately reporting expendable and nonexpendable components); unrestricted; and amounts invested in capital assets, net of related debL Condensed Balance sheet: 
Current assets $ Due from other funds Capital assets Other assets Current liabilities Due to other funds Long-term liabilities Restricted net assets Unrestricted net assets Invested in capital assets, net of relatad debt 

B. Condensed statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets Operating revenues (by major source). Operating expenses. Depreciation (including any amortization) should be identified separately. Operating income (loss). Nonoperating revenues (expenses) - with separate reporting of major revenues and expenses Capital contributions and additions to permanent and term endowments Special and extraordinary items. Transfers Change in net assets. Beginning net assets. Ending net assets. Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

21 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 
Operating revenues Operating expenses Depreciation and amortization Operating income (loss) Nonoperating revenues (expenses) Capital contributions/additions to permanent and term endowments Special and extraordinary items Transfers in Transfers out Change in net assets Beginning net assets Ending net assets 
C. Condensed statement of cash flows: (1) Net cash provided (used) by: (a) Operating activities (b) Noncapital financing activities (c) Capital and related financing activities (d) Investing activities (2) Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances (3) Ending cash and cash equivalent balances Condensed Statement of Cash Flows 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities Net cash provided (used) by, noncapital financing activities Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities Net cash provided (used) by investing activities Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances Ending cash and cash equivalent balances 

Y. DUE TO/DUE FROM AND TRANSFERS 

$ 

List by fund type the amounts due from other funds detailed by individual fund at your fiscal year end 
Total due from other funds List by fund type the amounts due to other funds detailed by individual fund at fiscal year end 
Total due to other funds 22 



STATE OF LOUISIANA "LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) Notes to the Financial Statement As of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 3, List by fund type all transfers from other funds for the fiscal year: Type of Fund 
Total transfers from other funds 4. List by fund type all transfers to other funds for the fiscal year: $ 

Total transfers to other funds 
Z. LIABILITIES PAYABLE FROM RESTRICTED ASSETS 

$ 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets in the Board (BTA) at December 31, 2003, are $ 0 in the current liabilities section on Statement A. Liabilities payable from restricted assets in the Board(BTA) at December 31, 2003 are $0 in the non-current liabilities section on Statement A. 
AA. PRIOR-YEAR RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS The following adjustments were made to restate beginning net assets for June 30, 20 

Ending net assets July 1,2003, previously reported Adjustments + or (-) $ 

Each adjustment must be explained in detail on a separate sheet. 

Beginning net assets, July 1, 2003 As restated 

(NOTE: Net Assets at July 1, 20, previously reported, must correspond to Net Assets at June 30 20, per the information received from OSRAP.) 
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STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF PER DIEM PAID TO BOARD MEMBERS For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Dr. Melvin G. Bou 
Name 

Dr. Kweli J. Amusa Dr. Elmo J. Laborde Dr. Kim E. Leblanc Dr. Keith C. Ferdinand Dr. Linde Gaae-White Dr. Trenton James 

Amount 
2.800 2,700 
0 9.800 4.800 6,500 

34 too 



SCHEDULE1 
STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF STATE FUNDING For the Year Ended December 31. 2003 

Total 

SCHEDULE2 



ssue Date of Issue 

STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACTS PAYABLE December 31, 2003 
Principal Original Outstanding Redeemed Issue 6/3O/PY (Issued~ Principal Outstanding 6/3O/CY nterest Rates Interest Outstanding 6/30/CY $ 



Issue Date of Issue 

STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF NOTES PAYABLE December 31, 2003 
Principal Original Outstanding Redeemed ssue 6/30/PY (Issued Principal Outstanding 6/30/CY nterest Rates Interest Outstanding 6/30/CY 

Total *Send copies of new amortization schedules 

SCHEDULE 3-B 



Issue Date of Issue 

STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE December 31, 2003 
Principal Original Outstanding Redeemed Issue 6/30/PY (Issued~ Principal Outstanding 6t30/CY nterest Rates Interest Outstanding 6/30/CY $ $ 



 
STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACTS PAYABLE AMORTIZATION For The Year Ended December 31. 2003 

FiscalYear Ending: 2005 2006 2007 2ob8 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total 

Principal 

SCHEDULE 4-A 



 
STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL LEASE AMORTIZATION For The Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Fiscal Year Ending: 
2005 $ 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 2025-2029 
Total $ -- $ 

SCHEDULE 4-B 



 

STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF NOTES PAYABLE AMORTIZATION 
Fiscal Year 
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014 2015-2019 2020-2024 2025-2029 
Tota 

SCHEDULE 4-C 

Interest 



 
STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) SCHEDULE OF BONDS PAYABLE AMORTIZATION For The Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Fiscal Year Ending: 2005 2006 2007 2008 .2009 " 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Principal Interest 



STATE OF LOUISIANA LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS (BTA) COMPARISON FIGURES 
To assist OSRAP in determining the reason for the change in financial position for the state and reason for the changes in the budget, please complete the schedule below. If the change is greater than I0%, explain the reason for the change. 

1 ) Revenues Expenses $ 3,848.474 4.933.942 2) Capital assets ! ,477,620 
Long4erm debt Net Assets 0 2.982.942 
Explanation for change: Revenues from license fees not high enough to offset 

Revenues Expenditures 
Explanation of change 

Revenues Expenditures 
Explanation of change 

$ 3,648,843 4,794,054 
1.439.743 
$ 199,631 $ 139,888 
37,877 

Percentage Chanqe 
5.47% 2.92% 
2.63% 

0 0 0 4.068.410 1.085.468 26.68% 
fees for contract legal and other outside services 

2004 Final Budqet 2004 Actual Percentage Budget Difference Chanqe 

SCHEDULE 15 



LOUISIANA STATE BOARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS STATE OF LOUISIANA DECEMBER 31, 2003 

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY GO VERNMENT A UDIT~G STANDARDS The following pages contain a report on compliance with laws and regulations and on internal controls required by Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. This report is based solely on the audit oft.he financial statements and includes, where appropriate, any reportable conditions and/or material weaknesses in internal control or compliance matters that would be material to the presented financial statements. 



ROBERT W. HIENZ, C.RA. ANTHONY J, MACALUSO, JR., C.RA. DAVID V. ERNST 

HIENZ & MACALUSO, L.L.C. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 3045 Ridgeleke Drive, Suite 100 Metairie, LA 70002 (504) 837-5434 FAX (504) 837-5435 
MEMBERS Ame~cam tasl~u~ ~ Ce~ Public Accountants So~ Of Louisiana ~ Pulik; Accountants 

, Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards To the Board of Directors Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners Department of Health and Hospitals State of Louisiana We have audited the basic financial statements of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners, a component unit of the State of Louisiana, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2003-1. 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners' internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control structure over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operations that we consider to be reportable conditions. 



Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the Board's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the basic financial statements. Reportable conditions are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2003-1. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to management of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners in a separate letter dated May 13, 2004. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the basic financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be a material weakness. However, we believe none of the reportable conditions described above is a material weakness. This rePort is intended solely for the information of the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners and its management and Legislative Auditor's Office and is not intended to be, and should not be, anyone other than those specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 
I-IIENZ & MACALUSO, LLC 
May13,2004 



ROBERT W. HIENZ, C.RA. ANTHONY J. MACALUSO, JR., C.RA, DAVID V, ERNST 

HIENZ & MACALUSO, L.L.C. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 3045 Ridgelake Drive, Suite 100 Metaide, LA 70002 (504) 837-5434 FAX (504) 837-5435 
MEMBERS Amerlean InsBcde of C~ Pubic ~nts SOCiety 0q Loulldana ~ Ptlbrm Accountants 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS We have audited the basic financial statements of Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the Louisiana Governmental Auditing Guide. Our audit of the basic financial statements as of December 31, 2003, resulted in an unqualified opinion. Section I. Summary of Auditor's Reports a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements Internal Control Material Weakness __ Yes X No Reportable Conditions X Yes __ No Compliance Compliance Material to Financial Statements ~~ Yes X No b. Federal awards - the Board received no federal awards for the year ended December 31, 2003. 
Section II. Financial Statement Findings Finding #2003-1 Disaster Contingency Plan (This is a repeat finding from December 31, 2001 - #2001-4 and December 31, 2002 - # 2002-2) The Board uses the Peachtree Accounting Program to generate monthly financial statements and uses a custom program written by the LSUMC computer department to process licensing data. The Peachtree program and data is backed up each night to offsite storage areas and could be accessed if needed. If the LSU system is down, the Medical Board's only recourse is to wait until it is up and running in order to do the daily work of the Board. These delays can cause some licenses to be issued late and a delay in making financial information available to management. 



 

We recommend that the Board have more control over its licensing data program so that the daily business of the Board can continue even when systems are down for extended periods of time. We also recommend that the licensing program and data be backed up to offsite storage sites nightly, so it can be accessed if necessary. Section III. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs: The Board received no federal awards for the year ended December 31, 2003 



ROBERT W. HIENZ, CRA. ANTHONY J. MACALUSO, JR., C.RA. DAVID V. ERNST 

HIENZ & MACALUSO, L.L.C. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 3045 Ridgelake Drive, Suite 100 Metaide, LA 70002 (504) 837-5434 FAX (504) 837-5435 

To the Board of Directors Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners Department of Health and Hospitals State of Louisiana 

MEMBERS American Institute ~ CecEffed Public Acco~tmlts 8 oc, i~ ~ LoUltllana Certified F~jbltc Accountax~z 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Louisiana Board of Medical Examiners as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated May 13, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the comptroller General of the United States. As part of our examination, we have issued our report on the basic financial statements, dated May 13, 2004 and ottr report on internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and contracts, dated May 13, 2004. 
During the course of our examination, we became aware of the following matters, which represent suggestions for improved internal controls. Comment #2003-2 Extensive Outside Services During 2003 and 2002 over $800,000 was expended on attorney fees and over $ 500,000 was expended on various contracts for data processing, continuing education and building management. These expenses represent approximately 25% of total expenses for 2003. The Board has experienced a reduction in net assets in this fiscal year and in the previous fiscal year in excess of $1,000,000. The Board can-not continue to provide services at the same level with these significant deficits each year. We recommend that the Board continue to review and evaluate contracts for outside services prior to renewal of these contracts. We also recommend the Board strongly consider the level of service it can continue to provide with the use of these contracts for outside services which should be in direct relation to the licensing and renewal fee revenue generated each year. 



Comment #2003-3 Combining the Two Computer Systems The Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners uses two separate systems - one for licensing and one for accounting. The accounting system is generated in-house using Peachtree. The licensing system is a custom program provided though contract by LSUMC. The information from the licensing system has to be put into the accounting system, some by downloads and others by hand, in order to integrate the licensing data into the accounting system. We rec6mmend that the Board consider one system that does both licensing and accounting or purchase an in-house licensing system that can be integrated with the accounting system easily. Comment #2003-4 Clinical Laboratory CME 

We recommend management address the foregoing issued as an improvement to operations and the administration of public programs. The items listed above represent suggestions for improvements in the above areas 
Sincerely, 
, j ItlENZ & MACALUSO, LLC Metairie, Louisiana 



LOURSL~NA ~TATE ~OARD OF ~EDICAL I~XAMINERS 
630 Camp Street, New Orleans, LA 70130 Mailing Address: Post Office Box 30250, New Orleans, LA 70190-0250 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

Telephone: (504) 524-6763 FAX: (504) 568-8893 Wnter's Direct Dial: 

Section I - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 
Finding # 2002 - 1: It was recommended that the property and equipment subsidiary schedule be reconciled monthly with the general ledger. Resolution: The property and equipment subsidiary schedule is being reconciled with the general ledger - Resolved. 
Finding # 2002 - 2: It was recommended that a disaster contingency plan be put in place so the daily business of the Board can continue even when systems are down for extended periods of time. Resolution: This finding has not been resolved - See Finding 2003 - 1 in the current year. Section 1/- Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 
There were no federal awards. Section IJI - Management Letter: Comment # 2002 - 3: It was noted that the Board had an extensive amount of fees paid for professional services. It was recommended that the Board hire additional staff to perform some of these duties. Resolution: This matter was not resolved - See Comment # 2003 - 2 in the current year management letter. 



 

Comment # 2002 - 4: It was recommended that the Board use one system to perform the licensing and accounting functions. Resolution: This matter was not resolved - See Comment # 2003 - 3 in the current year management letter. Comment # 2002 - 5: It was recommended that the Clinical Lab charge fbr attendance for CME courses. Resolution: This matter was not resolved - See Comment # 2003 - 4 in the current year management letter. 



LOUISIAP~A ~TATE ~OARD OF MEDICAL EXAMINERS 
830 Camp Street, New Orleans, LA 70130 Mailing Address: Pest Office Box 30250, New Orleans, LA 70190-0250 Telephone; (504) 524-6763 FAX: (504) 568-8893 Walter" s eirect Dial: MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN (804) FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 June 21, 2004 : To Whom It May Concern: The following is our response to the audit findings for the year ended December 31, 2003 and the suggestions included in the management letter dated May 13, 2004. Section I - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements Finding #2003 - 1 Disaster Contingency Plan: We are in the process of purchasing an in-house computer program to process licensing data. We will backup the program and all licensing data nightly to offsite locations. We are working with the vendor to ensure a smooth integration with our accounting program. 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 
There were no federal awards. Section IJI - Management Letter: Comment # 2003 - 2 Review of Outside Services The Board continuously reviews outside services and consultant contracts prior to renewal. The Louisiana Legislature has enacted legislation that will reduce some costs of legal fees paid to attorneys, which the Board currently incurs. In addition legislation has been enacted which will increase licensing and renewal fees in the current year. The resulting increase in revenue will help the Board continue to provide services at the same level it has in the past. Comment # 2003 - 3 Combining of Computer Systems The Board is purchasing a new licensing system that should generate accounting information that can be easily used by the aceotmting department. 



Comment # 2003 - 4 Clinical Laboratory CME We are actively seeNang ways to reduce CME costs, including charging licensees if we a legally able to do so. I believe that the above responses address all findings and comments, but we will continue to review each area to ensure that additional problems do not develop. 
Respectively Submitted, 
John Bobear, M.D. Executive Director 


